
TOWN OF 

NEW LONDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
375 MAIN STREET • NEW LONDON, NH  03257 • WWW.NL-NH.COM 

 
 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

MEETING MINUTES 

JUNE 23, 2008 

 
PRESENT:  
Mark Kaplan, Chair, Board of Selectman 
Larry Ballin, Selectman 
Brian Prescott, Selectman 
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator 
Linda Hardy, Town Clerk/Tax Collector 
Michael Loomis, Deputy Health Officer 
Clayton Platt, Surveyor 
Pierre Bedard, Surveyor 
Peter Stanley, Zoning Administrator 
Anna Super, Argus Champion 
Debbie Cross, InterTown Record 
Mark Wendling, Summer Resident 
 
Mark Kaplan opened the meeting at 8 a.m., and the Selectmen addressed fifteen areas of business during 
the meeting.  
 

 Deputy Health Officer 

 

Jessie Levine reminded Selectmen that Don Bent has not had a deputy for a year and a half at this point, 
and he has nominated Michael Loomis for the position.   
 
Michael Loomis said he has been a New London resident for a year and a half, and he works in the Public 
Health field at Twin Rivers in Franklin.  His undergraduate work was done in environmental health, and 
he is currently working in the area of chronic diseases, specifically diabetes prevention and chronic care.  
Larry Ballin said he is satisfied if Don Bent is satisfied with Michael Loomis’ qualifications.  He asked if 
he and Don Bent have spoken regarding the position in New London, and his (Don’s) initiatives.  Michael 
Loomis said they recently attended the annual meeting of Public Health Administrators in Manchester 
together, and on the drive down they had opportunity to discuss the position of Deputy Health Officer in 
detail.  Larry Ballin commented that New London is lucky to have someone with Michael Loomis’ 
experience interested in filling the position.  Brian Prescott and Mark Kaplan seconded that opinion.  
Larry Ballin moved to appoint Michael Loomis to the position of Deputy Health Officer.  Brian Prescott 
seconded. No further discussion. Motion unanimously approved.  
 

Minutes – June 9, 2008 

 

Larry Ballin amended a name spelling on page 8.  He moved to approve minutes as amended.  Brian 
Prescott seconded. No further discussion. Motion unanimously approved. 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 
Tuition Reimbursement Policy and Process 

 

In response to the Board of Selectmen’s request to revisit the Town’s tuition reimbursement policy, Jessie 
Levine distributed copies of New London’s current policy as well as sample policies from a number of 
other Towns. She pointed out that New London’s policy is actually a little tighter than most.  She said that 
most Towns reimburse up to 75% tuition for a grade C or better. New London pro rates, reimbursing 80% 
for grade A (up to $1000), 50% for grade B (up to $750), and 25% for grade C (up to $250).  Also, New 
London is the only Town that requires repayment of that reimbursement if the employee leaves Town 
employment.  She noted that all the policies require a recommendation from the Department Head, and all 
require that course work be related to the job.  None require that the employees seeking reimbursement 
interview with the Selectmen.  She said she does not feel there is much to be changed in New London’s 
policy. However, two possibilities are to make the application process more formal (i.e., have the 
employee and department head complete an application form), and/or to extend the period of time during 
which employee must repay the reimbursement if he or she leaves.   
 
Brian Prescott said his concern is with what courses people are taking. He suggested Selectmen need to 
do a better job of considering that, and also suggested that all internet courses should be looked at more 
carefully.   
 
Jessie Levine said that in some other towns, the policy does not provide reimbursement for electives, and 
is limited to degree-related courses. That could be adopted here, or the policy could require proof that all 
courses, including on-line courses, are accredited. Or the Town could adopt a policy that does not 
reimburse for any on-line courses, though she noted that would affect at least half the people who apply 
for tuition reimbursement in New London.  She said that if the Selectmen wanted, she could draft 
something that prioritized in-state, in-class coursework, with on-line courses getting a lower 
reimbursement. 
 
Larry Ballin asked if New London has ever reimbursed for any courses that have not been accredited.  
Jessie Levine said she is not aware of that, but hasn’t looked at whether the institution is accredited or not.   
 
Brian Prescott asked how many apply for tuition reimbursement in an average year.  Jessie Levine said 
four or five.  The maximum is two courses per student, per year (with a maximum reimbursement of 
$1000 per course).  The Town has budgeted $10,000 this year but that could go higher if more employees 
participate. 
 
Brian Prescott asked if it would be possible for Selectmen to discuss the particular course a student plans 
to take and seek reimbursement for, ahead of time. Jessie Levine said yes.   
 
In conclusion the Board of Selectmen agreed on the following: 

• They would like to look at course prospectuses particularly for on-line courses, ahead of the 
student’s enrolling (if the student plans to seek reimbursement). 

• Students should be encouraged to seek out local sources for the same courses.   

• Consideration will be given to pro rating the reimbursement amounts, allowing more for those 
courses requiring in-class time.  

 
Jessie Levine will draft a couple of policy revisions for consideration. 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 
Milfoil Funds 

 

Selectmen received copies of three applications for funds from New London’s Milfoil Prevention and 
Treatment Capital Reserve.  Little Lake Sunapee Protective Association is requesting $6680 (an increase 
of $1000 over last year’s request); Messer Pond Protective Association is requesting $2000 (last year it 
did not submit a request); and Pleasant Lake Protective Association is requesting $7000 (level with last 
year’s request). Jessie Levine said the Conservation Commission has reviewed these, and recommends all 
three.  
 
Larry Ballin said in reference to Messer Pond’s request, that he would like some assurance that there will 
be adequate public access to the lake. He noted that last year there were some ownership issues there.  
Jessie Levine said that last year, the owner adjacent to the public access required that the gate to that 
access be moved by six inches, and since people using the access there will still have to cross about two 
feet of his private property to get to the lake, his opinion is that he has the right to close that gate when he 
wishes.  She said parking for the boat access is in the right of way, or on a different private property.  She 
said she is not sure that MPPA can do much about it. She said that at some point the Town could speak to 
Fish & Game about the question of eminent domain there.  Larry Ballin said that if public access is 
denied, there would be no need for the funding, and it should be made clear that if that is the case, the 
Town will be seeking reimbursement of the funding.  
 
He asked why Little Sunapee’s request is up. Jessie Levine said that the New Hampshire Lake 
Association has cut back on the amounts it is awarding for lake host grants, which leaves more to the 
association or the participating towns.  Larry Ballin noted that LLSPA has $15,404 in a savings CD.  
Jessie Levine said most of the lakes associations do have rainy day funds. Pleasant Lake Protective 
Association has $62,000 in savings. She noted that they use that for things as the boat parade and 
fireworks, and all have funds in case the lake needs to be treated for invasives.  She said of the two, Little 
Sunapee’s expenses are more streamlined, and that association relies more heavily on volunteers.  
 
Mark Kaplan noted that last year, Little Sunapee Association took in $2975; that would be about $20 per 
member; whereas PLPA took in $9000 in dues. Jessie Levine said there are more properties on Pleasant 
Lake, and non lakeside property owners as residents of Slope & Shore also join.  She does not know what 
the cost of membership is for each association. 
 
She added that Little Sunapee Association always returns to the Town any balance of the funds received 
out of that capital reserve.  She noted also that the boat ramp they are staffing with these funds is actually 
State-owned.   
 
She reminded Selectmen that all of this comes out of the capital reserve, and that in March, voters agreed 
to not deposit anything into it this year. The current balance is $62,000, and the Town has decided to just 
spend that down, rather than enlarge it or keep it even.  She reminded Selectmen that the argument for 
providing some protection against milfoil, is that reduction in lakeside property values will impact the 
entire Town.   
 
Brian Prescott noted that last year the Town funded $13,500 for the lake hosts, and he asked what data 
they have gathered so far.  He suggested the Selectmen might like to see some justification for this. Is the 
program worth while?   Mark Wendling said that Dick Clayton of PLPA has those numbers.  Jessie 
Levine said that Big Lake Sunapee, through its host program, has definitely prevented boats with milfoil 
from entering the lake.   
 
Larry Ballin moved to approve the requests.  Brian Prescott seconded. No further discussion. Motion 
unanimously approved.  



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 
 

Tax Deeding – August 1, 2008 

 

Linda Hardy attended the meeting to update the Selectmen on the status of this year’s tax deed process.  
Five property owners who owe 2005 property taxes had tax liens placed on their properties in May of 
2006.  If the tax lien is not paid within two years, the property is eligible to be deeded to the Town. She 
said her office has sent certified notices of the deadline—August 1, 2008, to owners and mortgagees. Of 
the five, one property owner came in yesterday and paid the lien, and she understands that in two of the 
cases, the mortgaging bank will pay the liens, preferring to do that than see the properties deeded to the 
Town. (She explained that the Town’s liens supersede the mortgages.)   
 

Shultz Annexation 

 

Jessie Levine said this annexation is on tomorrow night’s agenda for the Planning Board. Since it 
involves Town owned land, the Selectmen must sign the application before the Planning Board can act on 
it.  She said that the survey has been done, and Clayton Platt is here to discuss that today.  Although 
Town meeting approved purchase of “approximately 60 acres of a 90 acre parcel,” the survey found that 
the entire parcel is only 60 acres, and the portion that the Town is purchasing is only 45-acres.  Peter 
Stanley noted that the owner has been taxed for 90 acres, for years.   
 
Mark Kaplan asked to confirm that the purpose of this Planning Board application is to annex the newly 
purchased parcel to the one the Town already owns. Peter Stanley said the Planning Board process will 
include subdividing this 45 acres off the main parcel and annexing it to the parcel the Town already owns.  
The Town’s parcel will border on the interstate, and will have frontage on Bog Road, and the Shultz’s 
will have frontage on Old Main Street.   
 
He went on to say that Town Counsel has this in hand, and is preparing the deed now.  Nothing will be 
recorded until that is complete and the closing has taken place.  Larry Ballin asked if the Board of 
Selectmen should review the deed prior to the closing. Jessie Levine said yes, there will be opportunity 
for that.  
 
Mark Kaplan asked if it is legal to proceed with this, given that the warrant article that voters passed 
allocated $275,000 for approximately 60 acres (and the related expenses as surveying, legal, etc.).  At this 
meeting, people agreed that the word “approximately” covers this eventuality. Nevertheless, Selectmen 
expressed concern at the size of the difference, and Larry Ballin said once again this shows a lack of due 
diligence.  He suggested that in the future, they should at least have a rough survey of a property the 
Town is proposing to purchase.  Jessie Levine reminded him that there would be a cost to a survey, and 
asked if the Selectmen would want to spend that money prior to Town approval of a purchase?  Larry 
Ballin reiterated that this is a big discrepancy. He suggested that there are mapping techniques available 
that could at least have given them a close idea of how many acres are concerned in this transaction.  
Jessie Levine said the Town knows about many such discrepancies that exist in the old tax mapping (that 
was done by the State during the 70’s). 
 
Peter Stanley agreed that they could have a check list to follow prior to entering negotiations to purchase.  
And the Town must recognize that it may need to spend a little up front.  For this the survey will be 
around $8000, and the appraisal was $1200.  Jessie Levine suggested they keep in mind that in the case of 
the Shultz property, this owner has been paying property taxes on 90 acres all these years. Peter Stanley 
agreed, but said sometimes the inaccuracy works the other way.  
 
Brian Prescott asked to confirm that the deed will refer to the availability of the boat ramp, etc.  Yes. 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 
He moved that Selectmen go forward with this subdivision/annexation. Larry Ballin seconded. No further 
discussion. Motion unanimously approved.  Mark Kaplan signed the Planning Board application, on 
behalf of the Board of Selectmen. 
 

Lynch/Town Land Swap at Low Plain 

 

Pierre Bedard explained that several years ago, they discovered that a part of the Davis Path -- the main 
trail through Low Plain -- goes over onto the Lynch property (formerly owned by the Greens).  The 
Conservation Commission and the Lynches have negotiated an arrangement by which the Town will gain 
2.8 acres of the current Lynch property (the part that includes the stray piece of the Davis Path), and in 
exchange, the Lynch’s will gain 8.9 acres.  Asked about the discrepancy in sizes of the parcels, he and 
Peter Stanley explained that the 2.8 acres does not only include the desired section of the Davis Path, but 
is quite nice, dry upland, and better quality than what they are swapping away.  The 8.9 acres that will be 
annexed to the Lynch property includes lower quality land. This is a land swap only, no cost (other than 
for survey that the Conservation Commission paid for).  Jessie Levine reminded Selectmen that this was 
approved at 2007 Town Meeting.  Larry Ballin moved that the Board of Selectmen go forward with this 
swap.  Brian Prescott seconded. No further discussion. Motion unanimously approved. Mark Kaplan 
signed the Planning Board application for this annexation, on behalf of the Board of Selectmen.   
 
Cell Towers 

 

Jessie Levine reported that she has recently received the second of two inquiries from cell phone 
companies about the Town’s interest in leasing some land for a tower. In discussion with companies, she 
has directed their focus toward the transfer station property. There is space there, and it is close to I89. 
She said all this would have to go through the planning process.   
 
She asked if it is now in the best interest of the Town to go out to bid for something like this, to actively 
seek proposals.  The down side to that is that it may give the impression to the community that New 
London is marketing itself to cell tower companies.  She added that under federal law, the Town cannot 
prohibit cell towers, though New London does have pertinent zoning regulations.   
 
Mark Kaplan asked if dollar figures have been discussed. Jessie Levine said no specific figures. They 
could lease the land for a flat annual rental fee, or just a percentage of lease space, or a combination.  She 
said the first company that contacted her indicated they would be looking for a piece between 40-feet x  
40-feet and 60-feet x  60-feet, and also indicated an interest in leasing part of the cabin that is there (now 
used for storage) for its operations.  The tower itself would be 180-feet high.  Mark Kaplan asked if it 
would be a tower pretending to be a tree. Jessie Levine said they can negotiate those kinds of details. The 
question is, should this be subject to an open bid process, for which the Town can set the terms. Brian 
Prescott suggested that if they do not hold an open process, but deal with just one company, there may be 
repercussions from other companies.  He asked if this would have to go to Town Meeting. Jessie Levine 
said yes, it would be a multi-year lease, and would require Town Meeting approval.  
 
Mark Kaplan asked what would happen to the tower should the company go broke, or should technology 
render cell towers obsolete.  Jessie Levine said the zoning regulations require tower owners to remove 
towers if they are going to be abandoned, and that could also be a provision of any lease agreement. 
 
Mark Wendling asked if there would be a performance bond required.  Jessie Levine said there could be a 
level of security written into the lease.   
 
Larry Ballin said this is a lucrative market, and suggested it would be worthwhile for New London to look 
into it, as long as the process remains transparent.  He suggested they go ahead and put this out to bid. 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 
Mark Kaplan asked if he minds marketing New London as a location for towers. Larry Ballin said the 
Town might as well be up front.  Mark Kaplan reminded him of the hearings for the tower on Kearsarge.  
He said they will have to be aware that some people will be upset.  Jessie Levine suggested Selectmen 
meet with the Planning Board to discuss site issues first. Abutters could be notified of the meeting. 
 
Debbie Cross asked how they get around the Town’s height restriction. Jessie Levine said that FCC 
regulations require that towns allow cell towers within certain parameters, and the Zoning Ordinance 
exempts telecommunications from the height restriction. Larry Ballin reiterated that the process must be 
transparent.  The Town should not limit discussions to just one company.  He agreed that it would be a 
good idea to hear what townspeople have to say. Jessie Levine suggested they could solicit some 
professional guidance for the process.  She added that the Town does need to look for other sources of 
revenue.  They can’t tax telephone lines. 
 

Use of Town Common Policy 

 

Jessie Levine said this question came up recently in response to a recent impromptu tight rope walking 
demonstration on the Town Common. There were questions of safety both for the individual doing the 
tight rope walking, and for others. Was there possibility of someone tripping over the rope? Would the 
demonstration cause traffic problems on Main Street?   She said that New London’s current policy 
addresses only use of the common by non-profit organizations. She has spoken to Town Counsel and to 
the Local Government Center. The Town could adopt an all encompassing policy that would prohibit 
certain activities or provide better regulation.  Or it could state that such “special events” are allowed with 
liability waivers.  The Town could require that people using the Common sign such waivers.  
 
Selectmen discussed the options and concluded that that would be impractical and cumbersome. Even if a 
requirement were in place, it would be impossible to catch everyone.   Must the person playing Frisbee 
with his dog on the Common sign a waiver? How about the person playing a guitar?   
 
Jessie Levine added that they do not require waivers for beach users.  Selectmen pointed out that the 
beaches are staffed. She said not at night, or off season.  The point is that the Town cannot think of every 
use of public property by the public. 
 
In conclusion, Selectmen agreed that the tight rope walker was a kid exercising free expression, and to let 
it go for now.  They agreed that if something causes traffic problems, that will be another story.   
 
Lamson Lane Update 

 

Jessie Levine reminded Selectmen that a year ago, the Town applied for a $450,000 federal grant to 
conduct hazard mitigation on Lamson Lane.  She said that at long last, FEMA is in town today to inspect 
the road and review the application with the Public Works Director.  She noted that they did get some 
funds earlier to do some repairs after the spring 2007 storm, but the larger grant is to replace six culverts, 
including the large crossing that was washed out in the last major storm, and do some widening and 
realignment.   
 
Summer Meeting Schedule 

 

Given the heavy load of issues that Selectmen are addressing, there was momentary consideration of 
returning to a weekly schedule.  Selectmen agreed to leave the schedule as is, but to add extra meetings in 
between if necessary. 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 
Two of the three Selectmen will meet here next Monday at 9:30 with Rich Lougee from Senator Gregg’s 
office. Since that constitutes a Meeting, it will be posted.   
 
The Selectmen’s next regular business meeting will be July 7 at 8 a.m.  The non-residents’ taxpayers 
meeting will follow at 9.   
 
Jessie Levine reported that the meeting with the State re Crockett’s Corner is on for that same day at 4 
p.m.  Abutters have been notified.   
 
Clough Harbour has suggested an end of July date for the charette at Elkins. They will schedule two days 
for that, but she suggests a day and an evening session.  Selectmen agreed on July 31 and August 1.  
Jessie Levine will invite Upper Valley Regional Planning Commission to attend, and to construct a task 
list from the input received at the charette.  
 
The Citizens Advisory Committee will meet on June 28. Steve Theroux and Fred Downey will be present 
to discuss the Community Center.  
 
Committee Reports 

 

Larry Ballin said the Planning Board has finished drafting the community survey.  Also, at Tuesday’s 
meeting, the Board allowed an exemption to New London Hospital permitting them to continue their 
paving work on the week end.  
 
He reported that the intersection construction progress meeting went well on Wednesday.  They plan to 
do the paving of Old County Road soon.  
 

Other 

 

Brian Prescott reported receipt of a question from John Wilson regarding the Colby Sawyer College 
students’ progress on the Recreation Department’s long range master plan.  Jessie Levine said that a draft 
has been done, and she suggested that the Recreation Commission and the Board of Selectmen meet to 
discuss that.  Larry Ballin said that has not been incorporated into the master plan process yet.   
 
Brain Prescott asked about the fence at Bucklin.  Larry Ballin noted that the existing fence has been 
repaired. Nothing has been added yet.   
 
Brian Prescott asked about the status of the damage at the Police Department.  Jessie Levine said the 
insurance company has authorized spending $15,000 for repairs, and Nelson Trumble has submitted a bid 
for $16,000. Selectmen agreed that if that is okay with David Seastrand, they go ahead and get those 
repairs done.  
 
Mark Kaplan reported that he spoke at the Seasons Association meeting.  There was interest in expanding 
recycling there, and he has met with Richard Lee about this.  They discussed the possibility of the Town 
providing some large heavy duty plastic containers for the recyclables to be collected in.  Richard Lee 
suggested that that would not have to be limited to Seasons, but they might also be able to provide those 
to Highland Ridge and Hilltop if there is an interest. (Note: the Town would not be doing the pick up. 
These would just be containers for the associations to collect recyclables.)   
 
Mark Kaplan said that people at the meeting were interested in seeing the architect’s drawing of the 
round-about, and that drawing is now at Ledyard Bank. He proposed that Hilltop may want to have it on 
display for a while as well.  



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 
 
Debbie Cross said she has heard rumors of some changes at the stump dump—hours of operation, items 
they will take.  Jessie Levine said there are no changes. They still do not take whole logs, or painted or 
treated wood—but those are not new changes.   
__ 
 
At 9:30 a.m., motion was made, seconded and unanimously approved to enter non-public session, in 
accordance with RSA 91-A-3 II (a), in order to discuss two personnel matters.  
___ 
 
Signatures 

 

At 9:45 a.m., Selectmen reentered public session to sign the following items. 
 
Applications for Building Permits: 

• New London Hospital, 273 County Road, (Map & Lot 072-016-000) building project not 
complete, need extension on construction trailer – Permit #07-058.  Extension.  Approved. 

• Howard Davis, III 143 Light House View Road, (Map & Lot 115-001-000) adding 12x24 carport 
to side of garage – Permit # 08-006.  Amendment.  Approved. 

• Carlton Bradford, 326 Old Main St. (Map & Lot 107-011-000) add roof over existing front and 
back decks and back door and stairs – Permit #08-063. Approved. 

• Lisa Crockford, 317 Barrett Road, (Map & Lot 096-031-000) build new 2 bedroom home – 
Permit #08-064 – Approved. 

• Laura Dow Trust, 534 Bunker Road (Map & Lot 063-007-000) erosion control for new cellar 
drain – Permit #08-065 – Approved. 

• Fran & Denise Olson, 23 Jenny Lane (Map & Lot 082-037-000) 24’x24’ garage – Permit #08-066 
– Approved. 

• Carolyn Reynolds, Trust153 Seamans Road (Map & Lot 085-024-000) reconstruct 18x17 
greenhouse that was damaged by snow & attach to house – Permit #08-067 – Approved. 

• John Furlong, 89 High Pine Lane, (Map & Lot 044-006-000) drill artesian well – Permit #08-068 
– Approved. 

• Scott Brown, 515 Wilmot Center Road (Map & Lot 052-013-000) build 6x16 woodshed, no floor 
open front – Permit #08-069 – Approved. 

• Keith Pomkoski, 287 Tracy Road (Map & Lot 129-024-000) remove door and replace with 
window – Permit #08-070 – Approved. 

• Heather Hansen Trust, 1252 County Road (Map & Lot 117-029-000) build 8x16 deck with stairs 
on back of house – Permit#08-071 – Approved. 

• Arthur & Deborah Hall, 333 Bunker Road (Map & Lot 062-020-000) install hot tub at the east 
corner of the deck – Permit#08-072 – Approved. 

• Robert & Glenda Cottrill, 166 Main St. (Map & Lot 073-035-000) repair and/or replace porch as 
required – Permit#08-073 – Approved. 

• Mark & Donna Reed, 75 Goose Hole Road (Map & Lot 042-016-000) 360sf & 960sf addition on 
either end of home with associated earthwork – Permit#08-074 – Approved. 

• Jane & Jerry Barnes, 800 Lake Shore Road Elkins (Map & Lot 051-005-000) kitchen and deck 
addition – Permit#08-075 – DENIED (does not comply with article XVI section C,2) less than 
required 50’ setback from reference line (lake). 

• Town of New London, Elkins Beach & Road (Map & Lot 077-012-000) stop/repair erosion at 
front & back of building and parking lot – Permit#08-076 – Approved. 

 
Applications for Temporary Sign Permits: 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 9 
June 23, 2008 
 

• St. Andrews Church, 52 Gould Road, Annual Summer Fair Sign to be placed at Information 
Booth  July 5th – Approved. 

• New London Historical Society for the Philanthropic Education Organization, sign to be placed at 
Information Booth July 12-19, - Approved. 

• New London Historical Society – Art Show – June 21st, 11-3 - Approved 
 
Application for use of Town Common and/or Band Stand: 

• St. Andrews Church, 52 Gould Road,  request to use New London Inn Common on July 4th & 5th 
for annual summer fair. – Approved. 

• Kearsarge Community Band, request use of Bandstand on Tuesday evenings 6:30-9:30, for 
impromptu band practice/concerts. Approved. 

• Tour de Stu, Kim Edgecomb, request to use Bandstand & Common on Setpember 7th, 2008 from 
12:30-1:30 PM – Approved. 

• New London Barn Players, request use of Whipple Hall, June 23-29th 10-6 daily – Approved. 
 
Notice of Intent to Cut Wood or Timber: 

• Edward Canane, Baker Road (Map & Lot 112-012-000) 14 acreage of cut, start date July 10, 
2008, - Approved.  

 
Waste Water (Sewer) Tax Abatements: 

• Kiernan, John & Evelyn, 165 Everett Park, (Map & Lot 073-027-000) broken water spigot 
resulted in 10,000 gallons of water being used. Abatement amount: $1058.15 – Approved 
(already signed by selectmen)  

 
Appointment Cards to be signed: 

• Howard Hoke, appointed to Town Archives Committee, term expires 3/2011 – Approved. 

• Laura Davis, appointed to Town Archives Committee, term expires 3/2011 – Approved. 

• Deborah Hall, appointed to Town Archives Committee, term expires 3/2011 – Approved. 

• Jim Perkins, appointed to Town Archives Committee, term expires 3/2011 – Approved. 
Other: 

• Disbursement & payroll voucher week of 6/23/08 Approved. 

• Lease agreement for New London/Lake Sunapee Region Chamber of Commerce – Approved. 

• Accounts Payable Vouchers for Tracy Library: 
1. Foremost Builders, Building repair, amount due: $11,949.86 – Approved. 
2. Partridge Family Heating, building repair, amount due: $11,553.75 – Approved. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 10 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Sarah A. Denz 
Recording Secretary 
 


